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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Cravatex Brands Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Cravatéx Brands Limited (the “Company”) which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related -
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Cravatex Brands Limited

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central ,,..-—~~..
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statemen f*
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable /7 14 oo,
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Cravatex Brands Limited

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

(i)

disclosed in the Note 5.1 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 5.1 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company _
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and”.

Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. /e
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Cravatex Brands Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

@mpm

Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 16 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23103595BGTPFG8435
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(1) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from =
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. ’

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government ha_s"' nof
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of I Amount (Rs. Period to [ Forum where | Remarks
statute the dues | in Lakhs) which the | disputeis , if any
[ amount | pending
' relates
|' N |
Income Tax | Penalty 24 AY 2017-18 CIT ( Appeals) | NA
Act, 1961 levied u/s i
270A |
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defauiter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

——

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {a_g.-;-":",__;, ;
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023 Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is #0t = =

applicable. / e e NG\
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

U]

) (a)

(xii)

(xii)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 5,319 lakhs in the current financial year and Rs
1,672 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,

our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination:”

of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causés
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 16 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23103595BGTPFG8435
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Cravatex Brands
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

e
A company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process desigqétl to” ;
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finarcial e el \-0 ,,\
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Cravatex Brands Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

@mfﬂwo\lﬂ

Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 16 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23103595BGTPFG8435
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Cravatex Brands Limited

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2023

Currency in Indian Rupess

Particulars

A ASSETS
Non-Current assets
(a) Property, plant and cquipment
{b) Goodwill
(¢) Right of use Assets
(d) Other intangible asscts
{¢) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(ii) Other financial asscts
(f) Non-current tax assets
(g) Other non-current assels
Total Non - Current Assets

2 Current Assets

(a) [nventories

(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash cquivalents
(iv) Bank Balances other than cash and cash cquivalents
(v) Loans
{vi) Other financial assets

(¢) Other current asscts

-

Total Current Assets

Total Assets
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

(a) Equity Share capital
(b} Other Equity
Total Equity

(o LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
(i) Borrowings
(b) Provisions
{c) Lcase Liability
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Total Non Current Liabilities

3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Bomowings
(ii) Trade payables:
a, Duc of Micro and small enterprises
b. Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilitics

~

(b) Lease Liability

(¢) Other current liabilities
(d) Provisions

Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabillties

Significant accounting policies
Notes lo the Financial Statement

The sccompanying notes are an inlegral part ol the (inancinl stalements
As per our report of even attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

@MHM

Partner
Membership No. 103595

Mumbai
Dated: 16 May 2023

Note

13
14

15

164
I8

164

20
17

3-44

As at
31 March 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)
Asat
31 March 2022

855 1,022
516 516
1,683 2,113
1264 2,086
1 -
399 661
38 42
4,756 6,440
5.153 5,080
- 460
6959 8.832
106 432
- |
. 21
7 97
1575 977
13,800 15,900
18.556 22,340
9,783 11,388
(15,615) (15,501)
(5.832) @413)
16,037 10224
45 212
1321 1.662
341 393
17,744 12,491
> 6.087
663 1.686
1,405 2.324
3254 2,002
656 789
196 645
470 428
6,644 13.961
18556 33,340

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Cravatex Brands Limited
[CIN: U51909MH2016PLC288788]

Mumbai
Dated:

Nissan Joseph
Direvtar,
(DN Mo, 0611972

aushal Picekh
Director
(DIN No. 09794399)

L6 May 2023




Cravatex Brands Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Currency in Indian Rupess

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Continuing Operations

1 Income
Revenue from operations 21 5,079 7,867
Other Income 22 55 107
Total Income 5,134 7,974

2 Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade 3,333 5,254
Change in Inventories of stock-in-trade 23 655 (850)
Employee benefits expense 24 1,110 1.589
Finance costs 25 267 994
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,4 and 37 127 983
Other expenses 26 1,953 2,482
Total expenses 7,445 10,452
3 Loss from continuing operations before tax (2,311) (2,478)

4 Tax expense :

Current tax : =

Deferred tax = -

Earlier year tax written back (€)] (16)
5 Loss for the year from continuing operations (2,302) (2,462)

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 40 (5,735) (875)
Tax expense of discontinued operations 40 - -

Loss from discontinued operations after tax (5,735) (875)
Loss for the year (8,037) (3,337)

6 Other Comprehensive Income:
[tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
(i) Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans 14 24) (28)

7 Other Comprehensive Income for the year (24) (28)

8 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (8,061) (3,365)




Earnings per equity share - continuing operations

Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 29 (64.34) (75.26)
Diluted Eamings per share (in Rs.) - (24.81) (21.95)
Earnings per equity share - discontinued operations
Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 20 (160.30) (26.75)
Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.) - (61.82) (7.80)
Earnings per equity share - continuing and discontinued operations
Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 29 (224.64) (102.01)
Diluted Eamings per share (in Rs.) (86.63) (29.75)
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statement 3-44
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even attached.
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Cravatex Brands Limited
Firm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022 [CIN: U51909MH2016PLC288788]

issan Joscph

B 0-19’ Director
@Mdﬁw (DIN No. 0670197
&%

Burjis Pardiwala Kaushal P;rekh
Partner Director
Membership No. 103595 (DIN No. 09794399)
Mumbai Mumbai

Dated: 16 May 2023 Dated: 16 May 2023




Cravitex Brands Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
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Cravatex Brands Limited

Statement of Cash flows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

A

Notes:
|

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest income
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of investments
(Gain)/Loss on Fair valuc of investments
Mark to Market gain on outstanding derivative contracts
Unrealised exchange gain (net)
Allowance for doubtful debts

Loss/ (gzain) on debt portion of financials instrument measured at FVTPL

Finance Cost
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for:
Decrease in Trade Reccivables
Increase in Inventories
Decrease in Loans
Increase in nhon-current and current assets
Decrease in Trade payables
Increasc in non-current and current liabilities
Decrease in provisions
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid/(refund) (net)
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchases of Property, plant and equipment
Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Maturity of fixed deposits

Proceeds from sale of investment

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of current borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Payment of principal portion of the leasc liabilitics

Issue of Series "A" Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Securities Premium on Issue of Series "A"Compulsory Convertible
Interest Paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net cash outtlow during the period (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance)
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(8,047)

1,833
99
10
3)
777
238
1,097
(4,194)

1,110
74)

21
(246)
(1,943)

751
(149)
(4,724)
(6)
(4,718)

@4)
4
1

459

420

(6,087)
11,917

(760)

(1,097)
3,972

(326)
432
106

Rs in lakhs

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(3,351)

1,382
(52)

4
(14)
N
(1)

1

752
(448)

1,262
472)

187
(1,991)

(229)
1,709
(749)

(1,531

(1,540)

(123)

76
303

264

(962)
2,654

(623)
593
407

(1,262)
807

(469)
901
432

The above cashflow statement has been prepared under "indirect method” as sct out in the Indian Accounting Standard-7 on

Statement on Cash Flows.




Cravatex Brands Limited

Statement of Cash flows (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

2 Debt reconciliation in accordance with Ind AS-7

Particulars Long Term Borrowings Short Term Borrowings

(Jpening balance as at | April 2021 8,018 7,049

Cash flows / (outflows) 2,654 (962)

Non-ensh changes:

Fair value changes (448)

Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 10,224 6,087

Crpeniriy balance as at | April 2022 10,224 6,087

Cash flows / (outflows) 11,917 (6.087)

Non-cash changes:

Conversion from borrowing to sharc capital 5,700

Fair valuc changes 238 -

Clasing balance as at 31 March 2023 16,678 -
Notes to the Financial Statement 3-44

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.[01248W/W-100022

i

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner
Membership No: 103595

Mumbai
Dated: 16 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Cravatex Brands Limited
[CIN: U51909MH2016PLC288788]

Nissan Joseph
Director

(DIN No. 06701972) (}
Kaushal Parckh B

Director
(DIN No. 09794399)

Mumbai
Dated: 16 May 2023




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

a)

b)

Company Overview
Cravatex Brands Limited (the Company), is a Public Limited Company. The Company

was incorporated on 22 December 2016 in India having its registered office at 401, Zillion,
4th Floor, LBS Marg, CST Junction, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400 070.

On 23 March 2017 the Company has purchased FILA and FITNESS undertaking under
slump sale, pursuant to the Slump Sale Agreement with its Holding Company Ms.
Cravatex Limited.

During FY 2019-20, Company had entered into distributorship agreement with VF Hong
Kong Limited (Licensee of VANS brand) to distribute, market and resale of VANS
products (footwear, apparels and accessories) in India for a period of 5 years until June 30,
2024

Vide order dated 25 March 2021 of the National Company Law Tribunal (‘"NCLT’),
Mumbai Bench, Proline India Limited (the Merged Company), a Limited Company
dealing in trading of PROLINE brand apparels, merged with the Company.

Metro Brands Limited has acquired 100% equity share capital of the company for an
enterprise value of Rs. 20,217 lakhs. Consequently, the Company is now a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Metro Brands Limited from 1 December 2022.

The Company is in the process of completing the necessary legal formalities for changing
its name from Cravatex Brands Limited to Metro Athleisure Limited.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (herein
referred to as ‘Ind AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act).

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
at their meeting held on 16 May 2023.

Basis of preparation and presentation:

Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities:




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

1. Derivative Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value.

ii, Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

iii. Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per Actuarial Valuation.
iv.  Assets and liabilities acquired under Business Combination measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the ncarest lakhs.
Amounts below the rounded off norm have been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes.

Going Concern:

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has paid up capital of Rs 9,783 lakhs (31 March 2022:
Rs 11,388 lakhs). Further, the Company has incurred losses during the current year of Rs
8,060 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs 3,364 lakhs), resulting in reduction in net worth to Rs
(5,834) lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs (4,113) lakhs). The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and the Company has performed an assessment of its
financial position and its forecasts for a period of twelve months from the date of these
financial statements. In making this assessment and developing the balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts, the Company has considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, supply
chain disruptions, disruptions in the different sales channels and other factors impacting
the economy and footwear and apparel industry. Based on current liquidity positions,
expected cash inflow out of internal accrual and planned funding, the Company will
continue its operations and meet its liquidity needs as and when they fall due over the
period of next twelve months. Further, Company has received confirmation from its parent
company for financial support required for next 12 months that parent company will infuse
funds as necessary into the company by way of equity or debt or assist the company to
raise funds in any other manner in meeting its liabilities, including operating and statutory
liabilities as and when they fall due. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classifications of carrying amount of assets or to the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue as a
going concern




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

b)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Basis of preparation and presentation :(Continued)

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current:

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
Current/ Non-Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

i. It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal
operating cycle; or

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv.  The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

I It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that

could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the
counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Notwithstanding the accumulated losses of the Company as at the year end, these financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis in view of the business plan of the
Company and continued support of its promoters / investors.

Business Acquisition:

Business combinations arising from transfers or interests in entities that are under the
control of the shareholders that controls the Company are accounted for as if the
acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if
later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, comparatives are
revised, the assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The
identity of the reserves is preserved and they appear in the financial statements of the
Company in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the
acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the net assets acquired and consideration is
transferred to other equity.




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

d)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to
working condition and location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and
any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure relating to PPE are capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with these will flow to the Company and cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are
classified as PPE when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 —
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Depreciation:

The depreciable amount of an item of PPE is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful
life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method over the useful lives
as prescribed under Schedule II of the Act. The Company believes that straight line method
reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Company. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation
are reviewed at least at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) are provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the
date on which the asset is ready to use/ (disposed off).

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Lives (in years)
— as estimated by the Company

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Electrical Installations 10
Air-conditioners 5

Computers 3

Other Equipments

Motor Car 10




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

f)

g2)

h)

~._ reversal is not recognised.

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Intangible Assets and Amortisation:

Intangible assets with finite useful life that are acquired separately are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The Company
determines the useful life as the period over which the future economic benefits will flow
to the Company after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method is reviewed periodically, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives / basis of amortisation are as
under:

No.  Asset class Useful Life

1 Software 3 years

2 Licenses Over the period of the respective licensing agreement
Goodwill:

The Company estimates the value-in-use based on the future cash flows after considering
current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate
and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are
developed using internal forecasts. The discount rate used represent the weighted average
cost of capital based on the historical market returns of comparable companies. Goodwill
is tested for impairment at each period end.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

In respect of the assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised
for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer
exists or may have decreased, impairment loss is reversed to the extent the amount was
previously charged to the statement of profit and loss. In case of revalued assets, such




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

i)

J)

k)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Inventories:

Inventories comprise of stock-in-trade which are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Cost of stock-in-trade comprises of all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction
of those property, plant and equipment which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed
when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in
settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realization of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

D

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Revenue Recognition:

a. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company assesses promises in
the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction
price is allocated.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after
deduction of any trade discounts, allowances and any taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate the provision for discounts, probable saleable and non-saleable
return of goods from the customers. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

b. Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with
the customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

c. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Lease:

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use
asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Leases (continued)

asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of- use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate, Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate. The Company determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources and makes
certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased. For
leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis,
may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed
payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-
measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-
term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2(A)

n)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Employee Benefit Expense:

i)

Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. The eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive post-employment benefits in respect of provident, in which both
the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the employees’ eligible salary (currently 12% of employees’ eligible
salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
(RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed
in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value
of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
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2(A)

0)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Employee Benefit Expense: (Continued)

iii)

potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic- benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.
The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The Company has obtained insurance policies
with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and makes an annual contribution
to LIC for amounts notified by LIC. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits
payable in future based on an independent external actuarial valuation carried out at
the end of the year using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised as Other Comprehensive Income.

Other Long-term employee benefits — Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain
rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for
future encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated
absences based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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p)

"':-Qt.ﬁ,rred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offsejz
_current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same Vi

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Income Taxes:

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

i. temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

ii. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a
history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that
it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting
date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

ult‘homy on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to s
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
realised simultaneously.
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2(A)

Q)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into
the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the Balance sheet date. Gains
and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-Monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using exchange rate as at the date of initial transactions.

Earnings Per Share:

The Company calculates earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders.

The basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after
tax for the year attributable to the equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Financial Instruments:

i)

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income — equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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2(A)

Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Financial Instruments: (Continued)

ii)

Classification and Subsequent Measurement (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gains and losses -

Financial assets at FVTPL  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised

amortised cost cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit

or loss.
Debt  investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
FVOCI Interest income under the effective interest method,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.
Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
FVOCI Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCl and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

—

 FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any in{¢ss
| expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabiges
/ are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methotFes==

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTP
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- tradin
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilifi

¥

*

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Standalone
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iii)

Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecogniton
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers not retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
but does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Labilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when it terms are modified and
the cash flow under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Equity Instrument

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no
obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets.

Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
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2(A) Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Financial Instruments: (Continued)
iv)  Offsetting (Continued)
Measurement of fair values (Continued)

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement
of fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value
of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are
readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

u) Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activitjgs
;% from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regulgr

X \".;\reviewed by the company’s management to make decisions for which discrete finang
\ . tnformation is available.

H

' “Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the management cvaluates\f.

{he Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
” performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.
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2(B):

b)

d)

':‘13;151 history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the e

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation,
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in the
following notes:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment:

As described in Note 2(A) (e), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
During the current financial year, the management determined that there were no changes
to the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment.

Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences:

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s

each reporting period.
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2(B): Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

(Continued)

€) Provision for warranties:
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These
estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average
cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future incidences.
The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise.

f) Provision for sales returns:
In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable
and non-saleable returns of goods from the customers are made on scientific basis after
factoring in the historical data of such returns and its trend.

g) Taxes:
Deferred tax, subject to the consideration of prudence, is recognised on temporary
differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future tax income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

2(C): Recent Pronouncements N

e

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notified new standard or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules as issued from
time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of
assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the
requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its standalone financial statements."

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant
and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the Company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales
proceeds and related cost in statement of profit or loss. The Company does not expect the
amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in
its standalone financial statements."
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2(C): Recent Pronouncements (continued)

Ind AS 37— Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1,2022, although early adoption is permitted. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.

On June 18, 2021, MCA through a notification has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2021. The notification has made amendments to various Ind AS.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any significant impact in its financial
statements."”

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS): Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies
new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would

have been applicable from 1 April 2021.

e,
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2023
Currency in Indian Rupess
5 Investments
Rs in lakhs
Particulars Noircurrenat Current
Ax al Asal Asmt Asm
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Investanent bn Eqpurty shares of Co-op Bank Limited (Unquoted | £
Imvestment in Mutnal Funds (queied)
sk Liggieidd Fipmed = Rosmiur Growth - . 3 54
Aitbtra Biva Swe Life Lighited Fivtel-Grocrnrly - - - 153
T Ligand Pl -remmth - = - 53
Towal 1 B - 460
- 453

Aggresme hook value of yuoted invemnents

5.1 No funds have been advancad or funcd or invested (either from hrcrmweil fimats or shap= premdium or any othor sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) of culity(ies),

including foreign entities i~

crmedianies™) with the understandiiry,  hethiét rozoniliad i writing o ihicew s, that the Intermerliary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behlf of the

Comgpany (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whethier, directly or indirectly lend or

invest in other persons or entitics identified by of on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate jaries™) or provide any guay security or the like on behalf of the Ultimarte Beneficiaries.”
6 Loans
Rs in lakhs
Nonecurrent Curremt
Particulars A at Anut Avat At
31 Miarch 2023 51 March 2022 31 Mureh 2023 31 Mamch 2022
FUernred. oo polad)
Einploves sdvances - - 2
Total - - - 2
7 Other Financial Assets
Rs in laklis
Fartictlsrs Nepecurrent Current
Ax at As As Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2021 31 March 2023 3t Muarch 2022
Hank depiis with orzinal maturity beyond 12 months 3 3 - -
Dreponsits 393 630 - 80
{nher Finanenil Assets 3 - 7 17
Total 199 ) ¥ 97
8 Other Assets
Rs in lakhs
Particulars Non-corrent Current
As ot Azt As 3t Axal
I Murch 2023 30 Murch 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advanze to vendors - = 43R 36
Othir sdvitihees - - 8
Receivable from Gioyernmient suthorities - 1,058 819
Aduance for DEPB License - - 4 47
Prepaid vapenses - 55 67
Tatal » 1,575 Rl
9 TInventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
B in lahhs
Particulars As at As i
M Mareh 2023 3| Muarch 2022
Stock-in-Vrade 5,153 3,003
Stevcs uml Spares - 7
215 5,080

Toal
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as at 31 March 2023

Currency in Indian Rupess

10 Trade Receivables

Rs in lakhs
Purticalurs Asat Asa
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sectrzl, considered wood 93 169
Elrszsural considered good 6,866 X,663
Clredit inwpaired 2,060 1,534
Less: Loss Allowance L 2.y (15540
Toral 6.959 8.832
Refer note 35- [ur information ahout credit risk und market risk of trade receivables.
10.1 Tradc Receivables ageing schedule
As at 31st March 2023 Rs in lakhs
Particalars Less than 6 months | 6 months - { year 1-2 ycars 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
LUndlsputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 5.264 1,390 145 157 3 6.959
Undisputed Trade Fuocejvables - Crodil ppaical 300 3= [ 7 533 2,060
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit lmpaired (30) ) [ i) 7l (533} (2.060)
Trade Receivables 5.264 1390 145 157 3 6,959
As at 3st March 2022 Rs in lakhs
Partlcalars Less than 6 montin | 6 months - 1 year| I-2 years 2-3 years More than J years | Total
Undisputed Trade Reccivables - Considered Good 7.601 1,039 177 13 2 8,832
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit [mpaired 1,079 - 239 104 12 1,534
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired (1,079 - (239) L4y (4121 (1.534)
Trade Recelvables 7,601 1,039 177 13 2 8,832
11 Cash and cash equivalents
o ke
Particalars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Halances with banks:
Current accounts 9 R
Eitklt in hund & linprest 5 9
Butik, depwnit with original nmiurity of less than 3 months 7 335
Toral 106 432
12 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Rs 1 lakhs
Particulars Asat Asar
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Thanlk depesd with original maturily of more than 3 months, but within 12 months

Toral

P
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13 Share Capital

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares  Amount Number of Amount
Shares
Authorized
Equity Share of Rs. 100/- cach 4,800,000 4,800 4,800,000 4,800
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 14,166,875 14,167 13.816.875 13,817
Total 18,966,875 18,967 18,616,875 18,617
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
Equity Share of Rs. 100/- each 4,082,789 4,083 3,271.100 3.271
1.001% Series "A" Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each - - 8,116.864 8.117
0.00)1% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of Rs.100 cach 5,700,000 5,700 -
Total 9,782,789 9,783 11,387,964 11,388
Notes:
1) Reconciliation of Number of Shares:
(A) Equity Shares: Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares  Amount Number of Amount
Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 3,271,100 3,271 3,271,100 3.271
Shares issucd to the preference share holder on conversion in the ratio of 10:1 811,689 812 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 4,082,789 4,083 3.271.100 3271
(B) Preference Shares: Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares  Amount Number of Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 8,116,864 8,117 2,019,810 2,020
Shares issued during the year - - 6,097,054 6,097
Less: Shares converted into equity shares in the ratio of 10:1 i.e. | equity shares 8,116,864 8,117 - -
for every 10 preference shared held
Add: Shares reclassified from non-current borrowings to share capital due to 5,700,000 5,700 - -
change in conversion ratio from variable to fixed i.e. I equity shares for holding 1
cCPs
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 5,700,000 5,700 8,116,864 8,117

2) Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.[00/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution to
all preferential holders. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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3) Terms/rights attached to the Preference Shares
The Company has issued 0.001% compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) having a par value of Rs. 100/~ per share.

One CCPS shalt be converted into one equity share at the option of the holder

Each holder of the CCPS shall be entitled to vote together with equity shareholders as if such shareholders held maximum number of equity shares
representing the deemed shareholding into which its CCPS will be converted.

During the current year. Company has changed the terms of CCPS wherein variable conversion has been changed to Fixed to Fixed conversion in the

ratio of | equity shares for holding | CCPS

4) Shares held by the Holding Company
(A) Equity Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Metro Brands Limited 4,082,789 100.00% - -
Cravatex Limited - - 3,271,000 99.997%
(B) Preference Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Metro Brands Limited 5,700,000 100.00% -
5) Shareholders holding more than 5%
(A) Equity Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Mectro Brands Limited 4,082,789 100.00% = -
Cravatex Limited - = 3,271,000 99.997%
(B) Preference Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Mectro Brands Limited 5,700,000 100.00% - -
Batra Family - - 2,725,446 33.58%
Proline Exports Pvt Ltd - - 2,269,079 27.96%
Paragon Partners Growth Fund-1 - - 2,180,308 26.86%
Cravatex Limited - - 592.619 7.30%
6) Shareholding of Promotors
(A) Equity Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Metro Brands Limited 4,082,789  100.000% - -
Cravatex Limited - - 3,271,000 99.997%
(B) Preference Shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Metro Brands Limited 5,700,000 100.00% - -
Batra Family - - 2,725,446 33.58%
Proline Exports Pvt Ltd - - 2,269,079 27.96%
Paragon Partners Growth Fund-1 - - 2,180,308 26.86%
——— Cravatex Limited = = 592,619 7.30%

L)
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14 Other Equity Rs in lakhs
Particulars Asst As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Reler Statement of changes in Equity for detailed movement in equity batance
(i) Securities Premium (Balunce at the beginning und end of the yeur) 2,096 | HR%
Add Premium reeeis al on issue of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - 1)
Closlng Balance T09h 295
{ii} Cupital Reserves
Operting Batancs 222 222
Al Capital resenve ercaled on conversion of Preference Shares into Equity Shares 7,305
Clnsing Balance 7,527
{iil) Capital Redemption Reserves (Balance at the beginning and end of the period) 69 69
{lvs Export Turnover Reserve (Balunce at the begloning and cod of the perlod) 4 4
v} Generul Reserve (Balance af the beginning and end of the perivd) 2335 2335
{vli Amalgamatlon Adjustment Deficlt Account (Bulance ut the beginning and end of the period) {5308) [RELE
{vHi! Equity portion of financial instrument (Balanee at the beginning and end of the period) 641
(viii) Retained Earnlogs
Opening Balspes (14,743} 11 EADS)
Add Transter from surplus in Statement of Profit und Loss (8.037) (3,335
Closing Balance (22.780) RERZET
ther Comprehensive Income
Cipenmg Balanes (175)
Akl Remeasurements of defined benelit plans (24}
Clising Balance {199y
Totat 15615 1I53i1)

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve:
(i) Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity and compulsory convertible preference shares is recognised in

Securities Premium

(i) Retalned Earnings: Retained camings are the profits that the Company has camed till date. less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholders.

(iii} Capital Reserve:
Opening Balance - This constitutes reserve created on accounted of conversion of Preference Shares into Equity Shares and reserves taken

over as a result of merger of Proline India Limited.
Addition - Out of opening outstanding no of CCPS 81,16,864 which was supposed to be converted in the ratio of 1:1 is actually converetd in

(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve, Export Turnover Reserve and General Reserve: These are the reserves taken over as a result of merger of
Proline India Limited. These reserves including Amal ion adj deficit account will be utilized as per the conditions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

(v) Amalgamation AdJustment Deficlt Account: The same is crealed on account of merger belween Cravalex Brands Limited and Proline India
Limited w.e.f 1st April 2020, This represent differenee between consideration paid to the sharcholder of Proline India Limited and net assets
acquired during the merger.

(vi) OCD reclassification: In FY 2021-22 OCD was classitied as Debt. Due to change in terms of OCD in curtent year. it is classified as Hybrid

15 Borrowings

Rsin lakhs
Parficalars Non-current
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
wredi

Tirin Lown from HDFC Bank Cid 1,082
Tt Loin [Hem Skrasant Bank - 82
PUinsevnirdill
L1 from Metru Brands Ltd 14,5480 -
4700000 0 01% Compulsory Convertible Preferemce Shares (CCPS) - 5,460
18,00.000 Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) 1,457 2,100
|[3:0¢ portion ol financial instrument)
{3 From Taw Capitals - 1,500
Total 16,037 10,224
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Notes:

Secured:

Term Loan from HDFC Bank Limited:

- Company has availed Working Capital Term Loan from HDFC Bank under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS), Ministry
of Finance

- Total amount sanctioned under ECLGS was of INR 1,083 lakhs and the same was completcly disbursed during the year.

- Tenor of the loan is 5 years with | year moratorium period

- The above facility from HDFC Bank is secured through

a) This facility is covered by 100% guarantee from Ministry of Finance, Govt of India.

b) Second pari-passu charge as follows:
1) by way of hypothecation on entire current assels of the Company including stock and book debts, present and future.
2) by way of equitable mortgage of property of Cravatex Limited (Holding Company) at Nariman point, Mumbai.
3) by way of hypothecation on entire movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future except vehicles.

- During the year, Company has made prepayment of entire Term Loan to HDFC Bank Limited

Term Loan from Saraswat Bank:

- Company has availed Working Capital Term Loan from Saraswat Bank.

- Total amount sanctioned was Rs, 97.30 lakhs and the same was completely disbursed during the year

- Tenor of the loan is 3 years

- The above facility from Saraswat Bank is secured through hypethecation of Furniture and Fixture of Kor gala Office, Bangalore

- The above borrowings carry a rate of interest ranging between 8% to 10%
- During the year, Company has made prepayment of entire Term Loun to Saraswat Bank

Unsecured;
Terms of Optionally Convertible Debentures(OCD):
- The Company has issued following Unsccured Optionally Convertible Debentures, Debentures are alloted on 27 March, 2017

- The OCD:s shall be converted into one cquity sharc at the option of the holder.

- The OCD has been fair valued through profit and loss using Black and Scholes Model - Option Pricing Method at Rs. 2,098 lakhs (31
March 2022 - Rs. 2,100 lakhs) (Refer note 35)

- Interest - On redemption, the holder of the OCDs shall be entitled to receive, together with the face valuc of the relevant OCDs, a
redemption premium determined as in any other circumstances, such amount as the holder of the OCDs and the Company may mutually agree

Terms of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) issucd to Tata Capital:

- The Company has issued following Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures. Debentures are alloted in two tranches dated 30th June
2021 and 29th October 2021

- The OCDs shall be convertible to any time at the option of the holder into such number of fully paid Shares in the ratio of onc equity shares
in lieu of one OCD issued

- The OCD:s shall be converted at any time at The option of the lender

- The above OCD carry a rate of interest ranging between 13%-15%

- During the ycar, Company has made prepayment of entire OCD's to Tata Capital

Unsecured:

Terms of Inter Corporate Deposlt (ICD) availed from Metro Brands Limited:
- The Company availed Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Metro Brands Limited
- The ICD amount shall be used for working capital reqirement ot the Company.

- Tenure of ICD is 2 years from the date of availement.

- The above [CD carry a rate of interest anging between 7%-9%
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Rs in lakhs

Purtienlars As al Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mlarch 202

3 m

15 Borrowings (G

Current
tXerrrnl)
From Banks

Hiriske hgndraif - 6,087
HONT

Tustal

Secured
A. The Overdraft and Working Capital Demand Loan facilities taken by the Company are availed from HDFC Bank and have been secured
by:
1) First pari-passu charge a5 follows:

1) by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company including stock and book debts, present and future.

2) by way of equitable mortgage of properfy of Cravatex Limited (Holding Company) at Nariman point, Mumbai.

3) by way of hypothecation on enlire ble fixed assets of the Company, both present and future except vehicles.
1) Second pari-passu charge on commerclal Office located at 4th Floor Sahas, Prabhadevi, Mumbal of Cravatex Limited (Holding
Company).

The above borrowings carry a rate of interest ranging between 10% to 12%.
During the year, Compeny has repaid entire amount of Overdraft facility to HDFC Bank.

B. The Overdraft and Working Capital Demand Loan facilities taken by the Company are availed from Saraswat Co-operative Bank Lid
(Scheduled Bank) and have been secured by:

1) First pari-passu charge as follows:

1) by way of hypothecation on the entire current assets of the Company including stock and book debts, present and future.

2) by way of equitable mortgage of property of Proline India Limited (now merged with CBL) at No, 70, JC Industrial Estate, Kenakapura
Road, Bangalore and Shop No. 768 & 769, at Spencer Plaza, Anna Salai, Chennai. Company is in the procees of transferring the title deeds in
its name.,

3) by way of Fixed deposit of Rs 52.79 lakhs in the name of M/s Proline Exports Pvt. Ltd. and Corporate Guarantee from M/s Proline
Exports Pwvt. Ltd (a group Company) for Rs 500 lakhs.

4) by way of hypothecation of furniture and Fxtures and other fixed assets of the Company at various Jocations.

The above borrowings carry a rate of interest ranging between 10% to 12%.

During the year, Company has repaid entire amount of Overdraft facility to HDFC Bank.

16 Other Financial Liabilities

Rs in lakhs
Prsticulars Noo-current Current
Anat Avar Asat Asst
3 March 2023 31 Muoch 2022 31 Muoreh 2023 31 March 2022
Emnployes benefins payable = = 239 52
Intevest Payable - - (O] 23
Arcrug] for expenses - = Ims 1927
- - 1253 2002
R b Lakhi
16A Non-current Current
Farticalars Asat As gt Akt Asat
31 March 2023 H Mirch 2022 31 March 2023 3} Murch 2022
L Llabiliy {reser pote 371 1321 1662 05h %0
Tl 1324 662 656 TEh
17 Provisions
Rs in lakhs
Purticuiars Non-current Current
Anat Asal Aval Axa
31 March 1023 30 March 2623 31 Msreh 2023 31 Muanch 022
Prowizion for mploye: benefites
Lrattiity frater nte 317 - 126 53 9l
Compenitad sbwengis (refer note 31) 45 86 7 14
Olhers;
Penviginn for Sales Return (refer note 2. below) - 410 294
Frovislun for warranty (refer nole a. below) = . - 29
Tural 45 212 470 12K

*




Cravatex Brands Limited

Notes to the financial statenrents (Continued)
s at 38 Mareh 2023

Currency m Indian Rupess

.

18

20

Maovement in provisions s i fakhe
Particulars Pravision far Sales Provision for
Heturn Wareanty
Halance #s 3 March 2021 27 27
Lasa: Lhifiratioe 132 12N
Akl Provisions 154 2%
Ralance as 31 March 2022 4 29
Lass; Wkilizatin (294 129
Adl: Provisions am
Balsnee as 3150 March 2023 470
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As st Asal
31 March 202 31 March 2022
Security depasits
Frotn Dhettlets andl Diseribuions M1 393
Vital 341 373
Trade Payables
Rs i laktis
Particulsrs Ax it Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Thue t Migro and smal| enterprises (refer note 30) 63 1,686
T tov Hobdgz Company - 7
Tz to others 1408 2317
Toval LU6H 4010
Payaltles toh rekatod prarthies {Rufir e 32
19.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule
As ol 3st March, 2023 Rs in lwkhs
L lLcis than | year 1-2 years 1.1 years More than § years Total
MSHIE 620 35 8 - 663
Dl 1L176 93 71 65 1405
Tutal Trade Pivables 1.7% 128 79 65 2,068
Asit ¥Ist March, 2022 Rt in fukhe
Particulars Lews than 1 year 1:2 years 2-1 years More than 3 years “Tutal
MSME 1.686 - . - 1.686
b 2,136 85 A3 40 2324
Total Trade Pavables 3.M22 85 63 40 4,010
Other Current Liabilities
R fakds
Particulurs As ut Av it
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advanees receivad npanst pupplics ind services e 51
Peterred revenue - 40
Sargory Dues Ll 94
1 [

Total
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21 Revenue from Operations

Rz in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sule af produets 5,008 7.656
Sule of services v 195
Other operating income 1 1
Total 5.079 7.867
Refer note 38 for disclosure in accordunce with Ind AS 115
22 Other Income
R in lukhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Income i =
Interest meorme on fair value of security deposits i8 -
Fuir vitlue sdjustment at FYTPL on debt poition of financials (2) -
instrunent
Rent Received is 32
Miseellancous Income 3 75
Total 54 107
23 Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade
Rs in Inkhs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
Opening stock
Stock-in-trade {including goods in tonsit) 1,895 1.036
Stipres und spures ki 87
Total 1,972 1.123
Closing stoek
Stock-u-trude {including goods 1 wansit) 1317 1890
Stores and spares - 77
Tatal 1317 1,973
Increase/(decrease) in stock-in-trade 655 (830)
24 Employee benefits expense
Rs in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year endid
A1 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
Salaries ond wages hy7 1.437
Contributions 1o :
Providend and other funds 94 127
St wellane expenses 19 25
Total 1110 1.589
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25 Finance costs

Rs in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on bank borrowings 132 677
Inturest expense on others 135 280
Other borrowing costs - 37
Total 267 994
26 Other expenses
Rs in lakhs
Particulurs For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Pueking materials consumed 53 28
[lectricity charges 20 27
Warshouse expenses 30 54
Rent - 77
Insuranee 6 12
Rates and taxes 14 142
Printing and stationery 7 9
Communication expenses 33 47
Repairs and maintenance 34 59
Advertisement and sales promotion 334 708
Travelling and conveyance 47 63
Commission and brokerage 82 89
Trunsportation and octroi charges n 129
Legul and professional charges 568 622
Bank Charges not related to borrrowings 4 38
Fair value loss on debt instruments measured at FVTPL - (448}
Payment to auditors 31 31
Bad Debts written off 25 -
Advunee written of f 209 -
Deposits written off’ 18
Allowange for doubtful debts 311 712
Foreign exchange fluctuation (Net) 16 13
Luss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2
Miscellaneous expenses 38 68
Total 1,954 2,482
Note: Payment to Auditors
Rs in lakhs
Nature of Service For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor
Stututory Audit 15 30
Other services 15 1
Reimbursement of expenses 1 -
Tuotal 31 il
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27 Contingent Liabilities :

a. Contingent liabilites :
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged s debt Rs. Nil (31 March 2022 - Rs. Nil)

- The lion’ble Supreme Court of India (-SC™} by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Suryn Roshni Limited & others v's EPFO. set out the
principles based on which all paid to the empl should! be identifical for inclusion in basic wages for the purpases of computation of Provident Fund
contribution Subsequently, a review pelition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC (or disposal

In view of the management, the hability for the period trom date of the SC order Lo 31 March 2019 is not significant.  Further. pending decision on the subject
review petition and directions from the CPFO, the impact for the past period, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no effect hus been given in the accounts

- Company has received order ws 270A of the Income Tax Act. 1961 for the leavy of penalty of INR 29.73 lakhs Company has filed Appeal to Commissioner
(Appcals) agains! the said order

b. Commitments
- The Company has issucd corporate guarntees to the extent of Rs 1.9 lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs Y lakhs)
- Letter of credit ontstanding 10 the extent of Rs NIL (31 March 2022 - Rs ,372 lakhs}

Of the above 2023: Rs. Nil (2022: Rs Nil} perains to disconlinued operations

28 Income Taxes
A. Components of Income Tax Expense:

() Tax expense recognised in profit and loss

Rs il Likh
Pasimulars Vo thee vear codesd For tne yasr onled)
31 March. 2023 18 Masth JUI2
Cuarrziik tax
Farler year tax provision writicn back) 9% feh
Thederred Tus (et
Tan espense for the year / periad 1) [
(if) Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income - Rs. Nil (31 March 2022 - Rs. Nil)
B. Rccondiliation of Effective Tax Rate:
R it bekidis
Parsieuben Var the yenr ombed Fux the vear onde|
M Mareh, HIth 31 Mah 20
it 11 from cunlinued operatians @31 1479
! 7 L from docontinued operatons (5,235) (e rid)
Agpbeabde Lan ialie 155 pine baclirie 2517% 2%
b {8 v e peesignised dn it wml s .

The Company has plan 1o move L the new lax regime and acvardiinghy will dischargo its 1ax Habilliy wsing new lax rate. The new tx mie has
breen used for caleulation of deferred lax




28 Income Taxes: (Continucd)

C. Vlovement in deferred tax assets and liobil

o s Tok
Particubars Opesing =3 1m i Profic nad Pt |
1 Aprd 2022 Ioxs for the yrar (Babillles)
Dtereed tnn Habilites
Property. plant and squipment & Intangible assets (253) 11K
Delerred 1ax avets
Dipallim e ik sivtwm 4HH n 3 M
Dicallow ances under section Hiapin 1 108 1t
Lamry forward Lowses 156w 296 =]
Mz 417 1230 nr
Defrrryd fas wveet ¢ (Tndiditieas as 2y 31 Vueeh, 2025 - - =
iom ik
Fartisubars Opexing 83 oa Recogabied tn Profit and  %et Dheferrod tux waset |
| Aprll 2021 losa fer the vesr (MabRities)
Deferred tax liabilitles
Preperty, plant and squipment & [nlangihle assets 12601 ’ s51)
Deferred tax uasels
Drailow ances under secton 4311 w (L1} M
Drallow ances under sechion 400100 "i 9 Pl
anmy Swwand Losves | 457 (L]
(AT "7 Pl 43
Defirrril (ux asset / {lablltics) as at 31 March 2023 - . s

Ihe Commany was meomocaied on 22 Decamber 20016 and purchased business s on 23 March 2017 During the previaus years and current year Congpany has incurred busines
Inssen. Since there 1s no history of taxable protils ur wther consineing evidence. there is o vinual certainty that sufticient fiture tasuble inconk: would be generated agamst which
the detorred tav assets eould be reahised, snd accordingly defered tay asset has been reccogmised 10 (he eent of liability.

D Unrecognised deferred tax asset:

Rs in lakhs
Particolars Ve e yeur endedd Far the year codual]
31 Merch. 2023 31 Marvi 20111
ety forw abl sl [ mess 8491 nRW
Linabunbed Deprovuatum 3,953 1522
Totel 12844 10355
E  Tax assets :
Mam bilin
Fartieslary ot the yrar onded For the yvar euded|
31 Murch 2028 31 March 2022
kL3 42
38 2
29 Earnings per Share (EPS) :
1 Tk bie
Furticabery For 1he year sadod 1T March, THLY Far thar yonr snded 1] Marck, 2007
Costiwuing sperstions  dbcoationlag oprvations o Continuin: .
EPS
111 Net Profit - {Limy) attributable to Equity Sharcholders 2.302) (5,735) (8.017) (2.462) {875) A
1 Waphled aserage number of Equity Shares vuisiandmyg (hos 1 3577917 35717917 35711917 3271100 3271100 TLI0H
Buske Earnings Per Share (Rs) (iAD (43) 116030) QM6 {15.26) (26.75) TR
11 Wenghted uverage nunber of Lyuity Shares vulstandmg ¢hos | 3577917 3571917 3577917 327100 327100 LITH
1111 Add- Potential Equiry Shares on exercise af ¢ CPS (Nos ) 5,700,000 5,700,000 - 2019810 2019410 Lolvany
{1t Add: Polcnual Tquity Shares on exercise of CCPS on meruer (Nos ) . . . 5504438 5504435
{1v) AdiE Potonusl Equity Sharew on wssue of CCPS-Right Sharss - - - 420150 423,150 150]
11 Waphted average nunber of 1 quity Shares Oulstanding lor caleulation o 9277917 9.277.917 9277917 11,218,495 11.218.495 11210495
Dibsnitvr EPS il iy
Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) {(A) (i) {(B) (iv)} (2481) (61.42) (R6.63) [PiB T {7 40) (29,74

30 Micro and Small Enterprises:

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deselopment Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006. certain disclosures are required to

be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
Rs in Lakhs
Purticutsrs Ay
31 M
Vit the princinal smmam sl (b mere due (hercon ramaining unpaid to ity
suppher at the end of caghh agcounting vear:
111 Mpliesipal s M in20
() Interest due thercon o §7
(h) the amount ol intcrest paid by the buyer 1n tems of section 16 nf the Micro. 5l
and Mudium Literprises Development Act. 2006 (27 of 2006)_ along wal the s
of the payment made 1o the supplier heyond the appomted day Junng b
acewnting vear:
1t the anount of unerest i sad paahis 1 1t period of Jelay T L 57
uislrigh Aad boon jiald b beyond il apy 4 day dunmg the jers b o)
adding the imerest speaified under the Mwcro Small and Medium  bisteemy
Development Act, 2006,
(d} the amount of mieres accrued and remaiming unpaid at the ond of k|
accounting ver and
Financual ver 2020-21 0} W
Fmancial vear 2021-22 a7 1
Jnancul year 2022-2) (54}
Vil s kel Bl gt st die shd payable even i the 150 57
unul such date when the b ohwma ars aimslls pant i
- for the purpane of disallowance of'a deducible cxpenditure under
“taerye. Small and Medium Caterpnses Devekopment Act. 2006

Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterpriscs amounts to Rs. 482 lakhs (March 2022 - Rs 1629 lakhs) and interest overduce on the same amounts fo Rs
180 lakhs (March 2022 - Ry 57 lakhs} During the year no interest has been paid to such paries. This inlonmalion has been detenmined to the extent such partics
is of informution available with the Company and the same has been relied upon by the auditors
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Employce Benefits ¢
Delimed Bonefie Flaps:

Gratuity:
The graruity payable to cmployees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the sevices of the Conmpany amd is in accordance
with the rules of the Compnny for payment of gratuity.

Inherent Risk on above:

The plan is defined in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular. this exposes the
Company to aciuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in i i inads return on underlying plan asses This may result in an
increasc in cost of providing these benefits 1o the employees in future Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject 1o any longevily risk.

Employee Benefits : (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plans: (Continwed)

A iy fakive
Particulars Ve the yeas enshed Vier (e year cniled
1 March, 2023 30 Marrk, 2911
Gratulry Ciratudly|

1i} Change in Defined Renefil Obligation
Ralance at the beyinning of the year oy 4

djusiment ol

Curremt Senice Cont H L
fkenelil pard directly by the mpluyer (1961 iy
Interest Cast 38 23
- Change in Financal Assumplions ) "
- Expuricnee Changes 5 £
Ukemefits Paid ey 4
Batance af the end of the year 252 i

(1) Change in Fair value of assets
Ralance at the beginning of the yar 152 [

Expecicd Rewurn un Plan Assets excluding interest income 12 f
Tntenest Income " "
Cantibutions by the cmployer a "
Uenefits payments from plan asas D] i
Balance af the eod of the yrar 200 15
{#8) Net Anet / (Linbility) recognleed In the Balance Sheet
Present value of the fundal defmed benefit obligation al the end of the period 1252) 1
Fair Value of Plan Asxets 200 11
Net Aveen | | Liubifiy b i Dabaies S 52) ¥}
{iv) Expenses recognlaed in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Servwe Cont X 3
Net Interest Cont 15 1"
amwsint s fiarged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss. 4 45
Employee Benefits : (Continued)
Definced Benefit Plans: (Confinued)
B wt s
Farilomlars Far ihe yrar paded 11 Far the year emdod 31
Alarch, 2023 “ureh, J023
) Ry In Other C; 1):
Changes in Financial Assumptions w 1
Expericnice Adjustments 48 i
Actual requrn o Plan asdets less EN i)
interest on plan asscts
Ammunt reergnized In Other Comprebensive Income{OCI) 24 m
(v} Maturity Proflle of Deflned Benelft Obligation:
Within the newt 12 months. 20 27
Between | and § years n 140
Tetwiagn & b 110y 126 185
11 Years and above 19% 320
(vi) Sensitdvity nnalysh for ugnificant
assumplions:*
Increasc/ Dectease) an present vahue of definad benefits obligation at the end of the
-‘.r v i} e (L) (831}
%o decrene In dncount rale 1”7 2K
% merease in salary escalation rote 7 ®
1% decrease (n aalary cscalalio mte sy oy
1% increase i cmployee Wwmaver mic |
%0 docrease i employ ex lumuver rate o i
The mmjor culegories of plan assets as 2 percentsge of torsl plan:
Tn<urer Managed Funds 200 152
Actuarial Assumpions:
Discount Rale (pa ) 746% e
Experted Retunn on Plan Assets {pa) 7 46% ~|
Tumover Rate Forscrice dyearsand e omvis | e ; . ==
belw 20 00%e p 3 For below 20.00% p a. Fex| ¥ 0. 1
scrvice § vears and : P e o — .
above 7.00% p . # b
Marmality tabks Indian Assured Lives  haulbos totin [
Mortaliry s .
2012-14 (Urban) §
Salary Esclabon Rate (p a.) 6.00% . W |
Retirament age 60 |
Wiighiul Averagy daration of Dedloed benef aldlyifism ey . i
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A

(B)

*The Sensttis ity Analyses hine bea calculated to show the i cmem i defined henefit ubligation m eofation and assuming there are o et changes 1n market condivkns at the accvmnting date
There have heen i changes froim the pravions perieds in the meths and asumplions used in preparing the ensitsiry nalyzes

Basis used to delermine Expected Rate of Return on Pian Assets: The overall expected rate of retum on asscts is based on the expectation of the average long
term rate ol retum expecied on investments of the [und during the esiimated werm of the obligations

Salary Escalation Rate: The past experience and industry practice considering promation and demand and supply of employees

Asset Liability matching strategy : The moncy contributed by the Company o the Gratuily fund to finance the liabilitics of the plan has to be invested

The trustees of the plan hove d the i of the fund to an insurance Company. The insurance Company in tum manages these funds as
per the mandate provided 1o them by the trustecs and the asset allocation which is within the permissible [imils p ibed in the i Bt Due to the
resirictions in the type of investmeats that can be held by the fund. it is not possiblc to explicitly follow an asset liability matching strategy.

There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully prefund Lhe liability of the Plan. The Company’s phitosophy is to fund these bencfits based on its own
liquidity and the level of underfunding of the plan,

The Company's expected contribution during next year is Rs. 62 lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs 91 Takhs)
Employee Benefits : (Continued)
Defined Contribution Plans:

Amount recognized as an expense and included in Nete 24 under the head “Contribution to Provident and other Funds” of Statement of Profit and Loss is : (This
amount is ing of amounts ised under di: i prrali

Rs i lakhy

Partiewinry 31 March 1820 31 Marxi D22

ol Family Penuron and other Funds 90 0

| playess Slate Imvmamcs whome 4 4
Tidud 9% L]

Compensated Absences:
The liabilily tuwards compensated absences for the year ended 315t March 20023 is based on actuaria) valuation carried out by using Prujected Accrued Benefit
Mcthad amounting to Rs 52 OR lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs 99 46 lakhs)

. Financial avsariptioms

Particuisrs A1 March 2003
Discourt Rate {p3) 746%
slaly faativim Rito tpiad T

. Demographic avanmpiion

Pardelary M Misreh D02) 21 Mareh 3032

Marulity lables Indiau Assured Lives Indian Assurad i
Moruality Martadity

2012-14 {Urban) 2002141 i

Turmuver Ras 20 % and 7% 20%and 7
Lo A ailisem Eatia 2 2

Related Party Disclosures :

List of parties excercising control:

S ol Bhetuted Partles Nt ol
Relatisasdip
bl Finsens & Trading Prvale Limited (Cease 16 be w e [0 J0th Novamber 2022} Uliimaie Holding
Company
sy Limited \Cetse 10 be wee I, 30th November 2022) Hokdiny Company
Alerro Bronds Lomited (w o.£ Mch Nowemicber 2022) liekling Company
A1+ Memill Foolwear Private Limited 1w ¢ I 30th Novemvher 2022) Fellow Subsidiary
Cingiiy

List of Related Parties where control exists:

Nume of Helated Farties Nature ol
Relationchiy

Iz Exports Privatc Limited (Ceasc 1a he w e . 30th Novemher 2022) Entarprises uver which

Iercions iefurrad bhose
Eak Apgareis fofeas Lol (Cease to be w ¢ £ 30th November 2022) are able Lo cxgrrise

Enterprises (Cease 1o be w ¢ [ 30th November 2022) Direcior’s relative:

interest
1168 UK Limited (Cease 10 be w,e. £, 30th November 2022) Fellow subsidiary
ey Management Personnel / Directors
M kel Baits (Cease to be w e st Decembber 2022) Chanan
Mi Hotan Baira (Cease 10 he w e.L. Ial Decembber 20221 Managing Director
Sr-Sanibecs Mk (Csmss 10 be w e.f. 310 Devembber 2022) Chief Exceutive Officer
\r, Sutnect Nmdrsjog (Cease 10 be w..f. 14t Decembber 2022} Dircctor
3 tin Lalpuria (Cease 1o be w ¢ 1. 1 Devembber 2022) Drrecior
Wi+ Rupa Vora [Ceate 10 be w e.f. 151 Decembber 2022) Duector
Wi N Santhunam (Caase lobe w el L&t Devembber 2022) Discctar
e it ILRAL 41 WCeasc o be w e € 131 Devembher 2022} Dircctor
%11, Nakul Tushniwal (Cese 10 be w e I© st Desembber 2022) Darector
U Sifiiay Marmals (6 oms b = 21 Fal Decrnibbey 0224 Dircclor e«
W4t H S Devaprasad (Cease lo be . [ 31st Decombber 2022) Chiet Funancal Offioer o
Ms Apuna Parukdbar (Cease to be w.e I, dih April 2023) Company Secretary R =L I . ‘-‘
341, byrady M4l Wb e <8, |t Eecamiere 2 Directee b Ot .
1k Kaushat Parckh 1w ¢ 1. 15t December Durector 4 :
i Nussan Joseph (w e.f. |st Decamber 2022} Director ;
A1 lgbal Dassany (w e . Ist December 2022) Drecstor f
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Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(C) The lollowing transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

32

D}

(E}

Ty [akh
Nome ui Hefaird Parvies 31 Marea Hi2)| 31 March 2022}
Renl Expenses
Cravatex Limited 4 ]
Heindurae ol
Craralen | mralind (RAT «appns b vhi 2 3
uiretian ol sbis b in iy
L rav Apparels Private Limited 5 35
e ety il aalid reirn
Mewo Beands Limited [EN}
1CD Tuken
Pruline Exports Provate Limited 1500
Meuo Rrands | mined 14.5%0
Intercyt o ICD Tuken
Prolne lixperts Privale Limiled 36
Mavro Drands Limited 236
Director Shting Fee
\ls Rupa Vor '
Mr N Santhanam i 3
Mr Anuj Rakbyan i b
Mr. Nakul Toshniwal i >
Mr Sanjay Marmala 1
Lenslutancy charze
Mes Ajstrns Stubip el ol A0 4
Mrs Apama Devaprasad {relative of KMP) 3
Ren nuneratlon
Mr.Rohian Baira 2 M
\ir.Randecp Mukim 13 128
Mr. 11§ Devaprasad 0 o
s Apunva Parulekar t 6
Mr. Anhur Shanna 7
Reluted Party Disclosures (Continued)
Quistanding balances:
Re v Iakhy
e of Related Parties 31 March 3424 31 March 2022
Durrowings
Metro Brands Limitad 14580 -
Trude Reccivobles
Metro icands Limited [
C on of Key Personnel of the Company:
R i fkins
Farfiwulers. 31 Marck JuLY M Marah 2073)
— 1" Rohun Batra 20 30
[— 4. Sandesp Mukim 25 e
%11 H § Devaprusad 65 ™
— . Apuna Parulehar [ %
Ankur Sharma (left on June 03, 2022 - "
Shuet Term Emplayes flenefin il16 u
| — Mz Rohon B 2 i
— My Sandecp Mukim o .
— My 118 Devapmsad H 1
— Mi Apurva Parukckar 0.5 ni
0wy Long Terms Benefits 14 "
Puymwat of siting fee o directors [refer note 32. C for detaib] £ ]
Total £ amprnsation 25 Er

Terms and condition of transactlon with related parties :

All related party iransactions cntered during the year are in ordinary course of the business and arc on am's length basis
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33 Financial Instruments:

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities :

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars For the year cnded For the year ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Financial assets at Amortized cost:
Loans (Current) - 21
Investments 1 -
Trade Receivables 6,959 8,832
Cash and Cash Equivalents 106 432
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 1
Other Non Current Financial Assets 399 661
Other Current Financial Assels 7 -
Financial assets at Fair Value through P&L.:
[nvestment (Current) - 460
Total 7.471 10,407
Financial liabilities at Amortized cost:
Trade Payables 2,068 4,010
Cash Credits/Working Capital Borrowings - 6,087
Other Current Financial Liabilitics 3,910 2,791
Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
Borrowings - Non-current 16,037 10,224
Total 22,015 23,112

34 Fair Value measurement :

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair valuc of financial instruments arc:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The investment in mutual funds
are valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutual fund statements received by the company. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial Asset at Fair Value through profit or loss:
Inyestments — Level 1 - 460
Tatal - 460
Finaneial Liabilities at Fair Value through profit or loss:
Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDY) - Level 3 1,457 2,100
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) - Level 3 - 5,460
Total 1,457 7,560

The management has assessed that cash and bank balances, trade payables, and other financial asset and liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

—..The fair values of the quoted units of mutual fund schemes are based on net asset value at the reporting date.
=y
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34 Fair Value measurement : (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: (Continued)

The fair value of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) is determined using Black and Scholes Option Pricing Method.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated as the present value determined using forward exchange rates and
interest rate curve of the respective currencies.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31 March 2023

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Particnlars Valuation Technique  Significant unobservable
inputs
Optionally Convertible Debentures (DUD) Option Pricing Method Equity value of the
Company
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a)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies :

The Company s principal financial liabilitics comprisc of trade payables, borrowings and other payables. The main purposc of thesc financial liabilitics is to finance
and support the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Investments. Loans, Trade receivables and Other reccivables, Cash and
Cash Equivalents, Other Bank Balances that directly derive from its operations.

The Company's activites are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior managemenl oversees lhe management of these risks. The
Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that tinancial risks are
identified. measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future camings. fair valucs or future cash flows that may result from a change in the pricc of a financial instrument.

The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes
that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign
currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact reluted to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchunge rates relates primarily to the import of fila and fitness and exports of fila.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged
cxposurc.

The Company evaluates exchunge rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions, The Company follows established risk management policies and
standard operating procedures. [t uses derivative instruments like forwards contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

Forgign Curreney in lakhs

Quistanding Foreign Currency Exposure (gross) Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade Payables
UsD

Foreign Currency Sensitivity on unhedged exposure:

1% increasc in forcign cxchnage rate will have the following impact on loss before tax:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Asat As at]
31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022
Usty 1 El

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps loss will decrease by an cqual amount

Interest rate risk :

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short term borrowing with floating interest rates. The Company constantly
monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategics to achicve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Tutal borrowings Floating Rate Fixed Hatc|
Borrowinps Burrnwings|
A at 31st March 2023
INR 14,580 - 14,540
At at 31st Mareh 2022 8,751 - 8,751
INR
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a)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies : (Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivities for unhedged exposure (impact on increase in 100 bps):

R in lakhs
Particulars Asat As atl
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

INR 146 S5

Note: [f the rate is decreused by 100 bps loss will decrease by an equal amount

Credit Risk :

Credil risk is the risk thal counterparty will not meet its obligations under a (inancial instrument or customer contract, leading (o a (inancial loss. The Company is
exposed Lo credit risk [rom from its operarting (primarily Trade Receivables). investing and (inancing activilies including Mutual Fund Investments. lnvesiment in
Debt Securitics, Bank Balance, Deposits with Bank, Security Deposits, Loans to Employces and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables :

Trade receivables are consisting of a lurge number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and based on the evaluation credit

limit of each customer is defined.

Trade reccivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthincss of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business. The company allows credit period ranging from 60 days to 180 days, subject to reasonableness of the receivable. There is no concentration of

cusotmers and receivable amount.

Movement of allowance for doubtful debrs Rs in lakhs
Particulars Amaount
Balance as at 31 March 2021 782
Add: Provisions 752
Batance as at 31 March 2022 1,534
Add: Provisions net) 526
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,060

Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit:

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial

institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Investments of surplus funds are made only based on Investment Policy of the Company. Investments primarily include investment in units of mutual funds. These

Mutual Funds and Counterparties have low credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to scttle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk
management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable sccuritics and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilitics to meet
obligations when due. The Company’s treasury team is responsible for liquidity. funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policics
related to such risks arc overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position through rolling forccasts on the basis of expected

cash flows.

The table helow provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics at the reporting datc based on contractual undiscounted

payments.

Rs in lakhs

Contractual values
As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Value
| Lessthanl Year 105 Years More than 5 Years Total
Non derivative financial liability:
Trade Payables 2,068 2,068 - - 2,068
Borrowings 16,037 - 14,580 1.457 16,037
3,254 3,254 - 3.254

Other Finanvial Liabilities
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Rs in lakhs
Asat Contractual values
Carrying Val
31 March 2022 g THME | Lessthant Vear 105 Years __ More than § Years Total
Trade Payables 4,010 4,010 - - 4,010
Borrowings 16,311 6,087 2,664 7.560 16,311
Other Financial Liabilitics 2,002 2,002 - - 2,002

Capital Management :

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
(a) maximise sharcholder valuc and provide benefits to other stakeholders and
(b) maintain an optimal capital structurc to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued cquity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

holders.

The Company monitors capital using debt-cquity ratio, which is total debt and bank deposits less investments divided by total cquity.

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Asat A a1
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tutul Debt (Bank and other borrowings) 16,037 16311
Tothl Equity (5,832) (4,113)
Liguizl Investments inctuding bank deposits 106 892
Irebt to Equity (Net) (L1 [3.75)

In addition the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders like interest coverage service ratio, Debt to

EBITDA, etc. which is maintained by the Company
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Leases

The company has taken on lease retail stores, office premises and warehouses.
The lease typically run for the period between 12 month to 60 months.

Information about leases for which the company is lessee is presented below:

Right of use assets

Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
1 April 2022 1 April 2021
Carrying amount of:
Right-of-Use: Buildings 3,782 2,935
3,782 2,935
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at|
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at April 1, 2022 3,987 2,935
Additions 836 -
Disposal / Derecognized during the year (1,310) 822
Balance at March 31, 2023 3,513 2,113
Accumulated depreciation
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at April 1, 2022 1,875 1,595
Depreciation expense 813 571
Disposal / Derecognized during the year (859) .
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,829 2,394
Lease liabilities
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at April 1, 2022 2,451 3,132
Addition = P
Accredition of interest 305 323
Payments 1,065 989
Adjustments for Disposals (287) 15
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,978 2,451
Current 656 789
Non-current 1,321 1,662




Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 813 800
Interest expense on lease liabilities 305 323
Expense towards short term lease and lease for low value assets - 221
Total 1,118 1,124
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 year or less 656 789
1-2 years 475 687
2-5 years 776 821
More than 5 years 70 154
Carrying Amount 1,977 2,451
Amount recognised in statement of cash flows Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Principal portion of the lease liabilities 760 623
Interest portion of the lease liabilities 305 284
Total 1,065 907
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A Disaggregation of revenue
Following table provides disaggregation of resenue

For the perind ended 31 March 2023 Tt Lkl
Particulars FILA VANS Fitness Proline Total
(Reler Note 400
Sepprumik noves 2hln 709 664 3.705 14593
Total reveme Trom comtrant with st Wil R i An5 14695
For the peciod ended 31 Mareh 2022 Rs. Inlakhs
Particulary FILA VANS Fitness Proline Total
[ Refer Mote 40}
Lanseni revenue 7,75k 426 1082 5439
Total revenue from contract with customers 7.786 426 1.982 3450
B Timing of Revenue recosnitinn: By, In |akhs
31-Mur-23 3-Mar-22
1 (ransferred at a point in time: 5009 V5ASY
ansferred over lime n 195
Twtal revenue rom conlract wilth customers 5,080 15.653

C  Contract balances:
The following 1able provides information aboul reeeivables, contract assets and contraet liabilities from the contracts with customers.
R, in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-23 3i-Mar-22
Trade receivables (Refer note 10) 6959 8K32
Dyeferved Revinpe | Relfernpte 20) 40

s are transfermed o
prinarity relate to the

The conlract assels primarily relate Lo the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract
receivables when the rights become unconditional This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. The contract liabili
ady ance consideration reccived from the customers.

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the period: Rs_ In lakhs
Particulars For the year ended 31st |For the year ended
March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Deferred revenue as on st April 2022 10 60
Less: revenue recogmised that was included in the contract liability balance at the 1y L
beginning of the period
Add: revenue trans(erred uncarned resenue 12
Dreferred revenue a5 on 31st March 2023 = a0
D Reconclliation the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:
R In lakhs

Partizuiars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Revenue iis per comtractid price 11196 20752
A

Sales return {fnel provision for <ales retum) 337 3572

Diecaunjs 2.740 1527
Revemiue Irsem contract with eusiiiner 5.079 15,653
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Ratio N il d 3)-Mar-23 I-Mur-12 Variance Explanaifon for variailon by
more than 25%
fus Current Ratio Total current assels  Total Current Liabilities 2.08 L4 82.4% The reason for the same is g
account of decrease o
current liabilities in compirisen)
Lo previous year
(b} Debt-Equity Ratio Debt, consisting  of Total Equity (29%) (430 -31 9% The reason for the same is |
current  and  non account of higher bomowmgs
current lease liabilities and Tosses during the year
{e) Debt Service Eaming before Principal repayment of loan (0.4%) (0.04) 1000.1% The reason for the samc is )|
Coverage Ratio inter 1ax, account of increase in losses i1
depreciation and COMPAriSOn (o previous year
amortisation
(EBITDA), arrived by
adding back Finance
costs and Depreciation
and amortisation
expense  on  Profit
before tax
{4} Retumn on Equity Profit for the period Total Equity 1.38 0.81 70 0% The reason [or the sume is oo
Ratio (PAT) account of increase in Josses .
COMPANSOI 1O Previous yesr
{e} Invemtory turnover Cost of Goud Sold Inventory 077 1.78 -564% The reason for the same is ot
natio account of decrease in cost o]
goods sold in comparison i)
previous year
(N Trade Reccivables Revenue from Trade receivables 073 1.77 -58 ¥% The reason for the same is ot
tummover ratio operations aceount of decrease in revenii
from opcrations in campitiisih)
to previous year
{¢) Trade payables Purchase of stock wm Trade payabies .ol 275 -41.3% The reason for Lhe same is i
wmoser ratio trade account of decrease in wrade
payables in comparison 7
previous year
(h) Net capital Revenue from Total current assets less total current liabilities 07l 8.08 -91.2% The reason for the same is i)
umover ratie operations account o decrease in il
current liabilitics in sampareim
10 previous year
(i) Net profil atio Profit lor the peried Total ncome (L.57) (0.21) 660.9% The rcason for the same is a|
(PAT) uccount of increase in losses i
comparison 10 previous year
(j) Retum on Capilal Eaming before interest Tolal Equily plus current and non current lease liabilitics 202 1.26 60 4% The reason for the same is o)
employed and tax, arrived by account  of  increase  n|
adding back Finance losses(EBIT) in comparison |
costs on Protit before previous year
tax (EBIT)
(k) Retum on Prafit for the period Total asscls (043} (0.15) 191.0% The reason for the same is om|
mvestnent (PAT) account of increase in losses iy

cumpJInson to previous year

40 Discontinued Operations:

The Board of Directors al its meeting dated 21 March 2023 has approved a Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger wherein the assets. libilities and business of importing, trading, sclling, marketing.
advertising, retailing and distribution of footwear, apparel and accessories under the licensed brand ‘FILA' in India, Pakistan, Sri Lanka, Bangladesh. Nepal and Bhutan will be demerged from the Company

to Metro Brands Limited The Companty is in the process of tiling the Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

und exp relating to operations is as follows:
A Results of Discontinued (perution Rs In lakhs
Particulars Amount as on Amount as on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Discontinued operatinns
Incume
Revenue from vperations 9.616 7385
vy v g 398
Total Income LIt A LA
Espenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 6511
Clyane in Inventories of slock-in-trade 1729
Empluyee benefits expense 1.292
Finance costs 1334
Depreciation and amortisation cxpense L706
Othier expoites 5
‘Total expenses 15,650
Laoss hefore tax (5,735)
Luss after lax 5,738y
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Currency in Indian Rupess
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Goodwill:

Goodwill has been valued at Rs 516 lakhs . The estimated value-in-use is based on the future cash flows using a 20%0 annual growth rate for periods subsequent to the forecast
period of 9 years and discount rate of 14.1%. An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (opurating margin. discount rates and long term
averape growth rate), hased on reasonably probable assumptions, did nol identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the Goodwill would decrease below
ils carrying amounl. Long term average growih rte is 16%

Covid-19:

in February 2020, the World Heaith Organization (the “WII0"™} declored COVID-19 u Public Health of [ i Concern The Company's ions were
impacted from 1 7th March, 2020 till the (irst week of May 2020 ( I'st wave) and further (rom the first week of April 21 to June'21 (2nd wave) as the COVIO-19 pandemic had
disrupted demand and supply chains across industries, impacting the business of companies, Even though India was impacted by the 3rd wave in Jan-Feb‘22 but the same was
not disruptive in comparison to the first and second wave of the pandemic. Considering COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has considered the possible effects that rmy nsult
from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the financial results. [n developing the assumplions relating to the possible future inties in the global

because ol this pandemic, the Company has al the date of approval of these financial stalements used internal and external sources of infermation, The Company has performel
an analysis on the assumplions used and based on current sstimates expects the carrying amount of its assets will be recovered  The Company has considered the impact to the
exienl known and available currently Since pow the pandemic has scaled down 10 & great extent and daily cascload has been significantly down, Company is wilnessing an
incrense in demand for ull across the channels with sume chanuels achieving pre-COVID level as well. The Company is leoking forward to more rabust demand of its product as
the markets and offices are already nonmalised

The Compamics Act, 2013 has formwlated Scetion 135, Compaics (Comorate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2814 and Schedule VIT which preseribes mandatory provisions for
Companies to fulfil] their Corporate Social Responsibility. The provisions of this section are applicable to profit making entities only. As the entity is a loss making Company.
provisions of CSR would not be applicable to it.

The figure for the previous year have been regr ified to pond 1o current year's classification/ disclosure that include changes consequent to the issuance of
"Guidance Note on division Il- Ind AS schedule III to the Companies Act. 2013" and further amendment in schedule U1,

Notes to the Financial Statement J-44
The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of’ the (inancial staterments

As per our report of even attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants of Cravatex Brands Limited
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